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CITY OF NAPLES 
PURCHASING DIVISION 

CITY HALL, 735 8TH STREET SOUTH 
NAPLES, FLORIDA   34102 

PH: 239-213-7100     FX: 239-213-7105 
 

ADDENDUM NUMBER 3 
 

NOTIFICATION DATE: 
 
 

10/21/2022 
 
 

SOLICITATION TITLE: 
 

 
   Banking Services - RFP 

SOLICITATION 
NUMBER: 

 

22-012 

BID OPENING DATE & TIME: 
 
 

11/1/2022 
2:00PM 

 

THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION IS HEREBY INCORPORATED INTO,  
AND MADE AN OFFICIAL PART OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED BID. 

The following answers to written submitted questions: 
1. Would the City accept an electronic copy of the Proposal via secured email in lieu of the hard 

copy requirement? 
a. If hard copies are required, would the City reconsider accepting three-ring binders?  Would 
the City consider unbound in lieu of spiral binding? 
 
b. If spiral binding is required, would the City accept certain documents (e.g. sample 
statements) be included separately within the required USB flash drive submission?    

ANSWER: Pursuant to page 1 of the bid document, electronic submittals are not accepted.  
Please follow the submittal requirement on page 1 of the bid document.  Additionally, please 
reference and adhere to submittal requirements. Furthermore, Bidder must submit one (1) 
original signature (clearly marked as such) of the response and six (6) copies (clearly marked 
as such) of the response and one (1) properly indexed Windows© compatible PDF of the 
original document on a CD or USB Flash Drive containing one PDF file of the full response 
that is clearly labeled with your company’s name, Solicitation number, title and contact 
information. 

2. Would the City be able to provide 3 months of its most recent Account Analysis statements? 

ANSWER: Please reference attached Exhibit A - Bank Analysis Statements. 

3. What is the Average Ledger Balance of accounts? 

ANSWER: Provided in the RFP Exhibit A Bank Analysis Statements. 

4. Please confirm which Tab the Respondent's Warranty form should be inserted in. 

ANSWER: Please insert in TAB 5 - ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 

5. Please confirm where requested samples should be inserted. Would the City accept samples 
be included separately within the required USB flash drive submission? 
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ANSWER: Please insert in TAB 5 - ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS. Additionally, 
Bidder must submit one (1) original signature (clearly marked as such) of the response and 
six (6) copies (clearly marked as such) of the response and one (1) properly indexed 
Windows© compatible PDF of the original document on a CD or USB Flash Drive containing 
one PDF file of the full response that is clearly labeled with your company’s name, Solicitation 
number, title and contact information. 

6. The City states on page 48 under Submittal Requirements that: "Proposal documents should not 
contain links to other web pages"; however, on page 38, Question 3.4, the City states: "If 
available, please provide an online address or link to your most recently audited financial 
statements." Please clarify if hyperlinks are permissible to include in our response. 

ANSWER: Only hyperlinks allowed are the ones requested/required by the bid document. 

7. Please provide 3 months of recent Merchant Statements. The statements will show how the cards 
are currently qualifying and give us the ability to determine any areas of downgrade 
improvement.?   

ANSWER: Please reference attached Exhibit A - Bank Analysis Statements. 

8. How many merchant accounts will the City of Naples need in total? 

ANSWER: 2 Merchant Accounts presently MxMerchants. 

9. Please confirm the service each merchant account offers the City of Naples. 

ANSWER: OTC and Beach Parking Pay Stations. 

10.  Please describe all payment application terminals, software and gateways being used. 

ANSWER: Tyler Munis ERP, Tyler Cashiering, Cityview (Building Department), T2 parking 
paystations, ActiveNet for Community Services, and Molo City Dock system. 

11. Do you accept credit card payments via Lockbox and/or eBill? 

ANSWER: No. 

12. Do you accept Advanced Payment by Credit Card?  If yes, what is the timeframe from payment 
to delivery of the product or service? 

ANSWER: No. 

13. Does the City of Naples charge a Convenience Fee as a part of its merchant payment model?  If 
yes, please explain the process for each merchant account that fees are being charged? 

ANSWER: No. 

14. What new abilities and/or solutions is the City of Naples seeking? 

ANSWER: Open to any improvements more important to not lose ground.  Interactive portal, 
Lockbox Services, IVR payments, web payments, etc. 

15. What vendor is the City currently using for its Money Room processing? 

ANSWER: Courier Services and secondary count of Parking Meter Coin. 

16. RFP states that separate lockboxes would be required for specific billing functions.  How many 
lockboxes does the City have? 
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ANSWER: One presently and foreseeable future. 

17. Can the City provide details as to what types of payments the lockbox would see in each box? 

ANSWER: N/A. 

18. Does the City have any requirements as to location of the boxes? 

ANSWER: Strongly desire City of Naples PO Box in Naples, FL. 

19. Are there any special processing requirements for handling each type of payment? 

ANSWER: No. 

20. Can the City provide a copy of the processing instructions? 

ANSWER: N/A. 

21. Are any of the lockboxes seasonal? 

ANSWER: No. 

22. Are there peak periods when lockbox will expect to see more volumes in some months versus 
others? 

ANSWER: Daily averages provided in original RFP. 

23. Can you provide volumes by month? 

ANSWER: Can extrapolate based on daily volumes. 

24. How often do you bill your customers? 

ANSWER: 2-month billing cycle. 

25.  Do you have a scannable coupon with an OCR line using OCRA font? 

ANSWER: Yes. 

26. If yes, does the OCR Line contain all data needed for the City, to post the payments? 

ANSWER: Yes, however customers do not always include and can require electronic and 
individual verification.  Need to strike balance between what provider can answer and true 
items requiring City to work exceptions. 

27. Is there any manual data entry needed in addition to the OCR line information? 

ANSWER: If coupon provided, No. 

28. If so how many fields and characters per field?  Please provide details per box. 

ANSWER: N/A. 

29. Does the City require a posting file that will be transmitted to the City for automation of posting? 

ANSWER: Yes, already spelled out as requirement in original RFP. 

30. Page 21, City states that copies of all deposits along with any paperwork be forwarded to the 
City. 

ANSWER: Received electronically now. 
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31. In lieu of receiving paper documents back from the lockbox, would the City consider using the 
Lockbox online system for archival and researching of payments? 

ANSWER: Received electronically now. 

32. Would the lockbox receive any credit card payments?  Will the City require the lockbox to 
process those payments? 

ANSWER: No. 

33. How are you handling walk-in payments?  Does the City scan these payments directly to the 
bank (remote deposit capture) or send these payments to the lockbox? 

ANSWER: City records walk-ins separately and captures in remote deposits daily. 

34. Do you have a lot of exception handling through the lockbox?  What kind of exceptions? 

ANSWER: Exceptions were minimal with FFIB since acquisition, exceptions have increased 
significantly.  Level of effort of your bank if awarded will determine exceptions needing 
work from City.  Will not elaborate further as many of current exceptions needing work by 
City should be much less. 

35. What is the settlement frequency of payment for the Purchasing Card program?  (weekly/bi-
weekly/monthly). 

ANSWER: Monthly. 

36. What is the billing payment structure for the Purchasing Card Program?  (one central bill and 
one central payment to issuer). 

ANSWER: One statement - one payment. 

37. Describe the rebate/incentive received from the current Purchasing Card provider? 

ANSWER: Please reference the attached Exhibit B - P-Card Agreement. 

38. Please provide your rebate schedule. 

ANSWER: Please reference the attached Exhibit B - P-Card Agreement. 

39. What is the annual and monthly spend of the existing Purchasing Card program? 

ANSWER: Currently projected annual spend of $4 Million / monthly average of $333,000. 

40. Are there some months that have a higher or lower usage than others?  Please describe and 
provide the dollar usage during peak and lower usage months? 

ANSWER: No. 

41. Please provide the number of cards issued.  Are there any initiatives to increase or reduce the 
number of cardholders? 

ANSWER: 146 active cards – No. 

42. Please provide the breakdown of Travel & Expense vs. vendor payments? 

ANSWER: the City of Naples currently has a One Card Solution. 

43. What is the anticipated growth rate of the purchasing card program currently in place? 
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ANSWER: Minimal growth rate anticipated at this time. 

44. Are you currently using an expense report system? 

ANSWER: Tyler Munis. 

45. Is there any file integration from the Purchasing Card program into an ERP system?  If so, 
which ERP system? 

ANSWER: Tyler Munis. 

46. Where are cardholders or reconcilers allocating Purchasing card transactions today?  (Card 
platform or ERP) 

ANSWER: Tyler Munis. 

47. Can you provide a total percentage of spend for large ticket or partner program? 

ANSWER: Information is not available.  

48. How many vendors and how much volume is being paid through a Virtual Card or ePayables 
Card program?  (Payment upon invoice approval) If none, has this been explored in the past 
and what was the outcome? 

ANSWER: We do not use either program. 

49. Are static credit card numbers used to pay approved invoices for each vendor?  Please explain 
the current payment process using virtual cards/ePayables? 

ANSWER: Do not use this program. 

50. Please provide a vendor file detailing 12 months of vendor spend and method of payment so 
that issuers can identify Pcard and Virtual growth opportunities. 

ANSWER: Information not available. 

51. What type of vendor outreach/campaign do you have in place today? 

ANSWER: None at this time. 

52. What are typical payment terms with suppliers? 

ANSWER: Payment upon purchase/receival of goods and services. 

53. What method is used to send ACH Files to the bank? (File Transmission through Secure FTP, 
or File Upload through online portal). 

ANSWER: Upload to portal. 

54. What is the frequency of the ACH Files?  (daily/weekly/monthly). 

ANSWER: Average 3 per week.  Consider daily as weeks very. 

55. How is ACH Origination being utilized?  (vendor payments/payroll/collection etc.) 

ANSWER: All of the above. 

56. What are the daily/weekly/monthly amounts for the Debit (collection) files? 

ANSWER: See analysis docs. 
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57. Are funds held the day the ACH file is transmitted to the bank (prefund) or are they deducted 
from the account on the settlement date?  (underwritten exposure) 

ANSWER: Deducted on the settlement date. 

58. Is payroll performed in house or through a third party payroll provider? 

ANSWER: In-house. 

59. How many employees receive checks vs. direct deposit? 

ANSWER: No payroll “checks.” Roughly 540 employees (varies) all direct deposit. 

60. Would The City of Naples consider awarding this RFP to a Financial Institution knowing that it 
will be going through an upcoming acquisition? 

ANSWER: No. 

61. Given the recent business interruption/delays due to Hurricane Ian, will the City consider 
extending the due date of this RFP? 

ANSWER: RFP opening dated extended per addendum 2. 

62. Does the city use Tyler/Munis for all your ERP functions including Utility Billing? 

ANSWER: Yes. 

63. How many Employees does the City have?  What % of these employees are on Direct Deposit? 

ANSWER: Please reference the answer to question #59. 

64. For your Parking Meters, how often do you need coins to be picked up (daily, weekly, etc) and 
how many bags of coins will be provided for deposit for each pickup? 

ANSWER: Once weekly – Expect to be only bi-weekly by the time the new bank is on board 
(hoping to phase out with parking APP by end of FY 2023).    

65. Can you provide a copy of, or link to the City’s Investment Policy, if independent of State of 
Florida Statutes? 

ANSWER: Please reference the attached Exhibit D - City of Naples Investment Policy.  

66. Does the City have the capability to save/burn data to CD ROM? 

ANSWER: Yes, if need be.    

67. For Remote Deposit, does the City currently use a single-feed or multiple-feed check scanner?  
How many scanners does the City possess across all departments? 

ANSWER: 2 scanners in the finance department one serves as backup. 

68. How many vendor payments via Check does the City process each month? 

ANSWER: Please reference Exhibit A - Bank Analysis & Statements. 

69. Please provide a list of the locations/offices/addresses where the City accepts payments, and 
include the payment type accepted (cash, check, credit card).  Which of these locations deposit 
in a local bank vs. transporting to the City Cashier office?  Are these transports completed by 
an armored courier, local safety officer, or City employee? 
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ANSWER: All locations accept cash, check, credit card.  735 8th Street S. Naples FL 34102 – 
deposits transported by bank courier service. All other locations City Employee transport to 
City Cashier office.  295 Riverside Circle Naples FL  34102, 880 12th Ave. S. Naples FL  34102, 
755 8th Ave. S. Naples FL  34102, 1500 5th Ave. N. Naples FL  34102, 1600 Fleischmann Blvd. 
Naples, FL  34102, 451 11th Street N. Naples FL  34102, 730 8th Street S. Naples, FL  34102, 301 
11th Street N. Naples FL  34102, 355 Riverside Circle Naples FL  34102, 280 Riverside Circle 
Naples FL  34102. 

70. What is the current pricing structure on existing program? 
 
a. What are your current contract terms? 30 day with or without cancellation clause for 
termination? 

ANSWER: Please Exhibit A - Bank Analysis & Statements. 

71. What are your primary goals in exploring a new card program? 

ANSWER: The goal is to have a program as described in the RFP. 

72. What is your current A/P process like (% of ACH, Card, Check, etc)? Is any of it automated? 

ANSWER: A/P process is automated for ACH and Check.  Pcard process is automated 
utilizing a separate module in same ERP system.  

73. What ERP system does the City use? 

ANSWER: Tyler Munis. 

74. Please identify all City Departments currently accepting payments. 

ANSWER:  Included in this RFP is Police, Finance, and Community Services. 

75. How many merchant processing accounts will you need to establish to convert from the current 
processing? 

ANSWER:  2. 

76. Are any of these charging a Service Fee? If yes, what is that Service Fee dollar amount or 
percentage? 

ANSWER: Analysis with Fee already provided. 

77. Are the processing and funding of the transactions directed to one City of Naples, FL central 
deposit account, or the individual deposit accounts? 

ANSWER: Central back accounts. 

78. Do you wish to have the lockbox process credit card payments upon receipt or are they to be 
rejected and returned? 

ANSWER: Answered do not accept 

79. Please provide the current processing solutions City of Naples, FL uses:  ALL OF THE BELOW 

- Retail – Face-to-Face: 
A. What are the terminals (manufacturer/model) currently in use? 
B. How many terminals are there? 
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- Mail Order/Telephone Order: 
A. What solutions are used to facilitate payments? 
 

- Internet (Website with payment capabilities): 
A. Is there more than one website?  Please provide URL’s.   

 
- Do you have any plan to replace any of these as part of this RFP process? Please identify in 

detail. 
NO 

- Are there any specific features or user characteristics that City of Naples, FL enjoys from the 
solutions? Please identify in detail. 
 

- Are there any specific features or user characteristics that City of Naples, FL users do not like 
or do not work? Please identify in detail. 

 
ANSWER:  No 

80. Are there any specific items that the City of Naples, FL currently enjoys or recognizes as 
additional value to the organization, OR are there any “wish list” items?  If so, please identify in 
detail. 

ANSWER:  Open to new features, required features spelled out in RFP. 

81. Are there any products/vendors in which the City of Naples, FL has had a negative experience 
and will not entertain as solutions?  If so, please identify. 

ANSWER: City reserves the right to evaluate all vendors with the vendors themselves. 

82. Reporting Solutions: Please provide samples currently being used by City including any 
processing statements. 

a. How are transactional reconciled today, are you using a bank provided expense 
management system? 
 

ANSWER:  Not using a bank provided expense management system. 

83. Please provide 3 months of Account Analysis statements, bank statements, money market 
statements, etc. 

ANSWER: Already provided  

84. Please provide 3 months of Merchant Card statements. If any? 

ANSWER: Please reference Exhibit C. 

85. Can we provide alternative or is this a deal breaker? 2.6   Provide Courier services to City Hall 
to collect coins taken in by the City’s parking meters. 

ANSWER: No. 

86. Please provide response?  2.23. Provide a money market account for the investment of cash 
not used during the course of several days. 

ANSWER: This is not a question as written. 

87. .   Discrepancy below regarding links from Original RFP? 
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3.4. Include one (1) electronic copy of the most recent audited financial statement with the 
proposal. If available, please provide an online address or link to your most recently audited 
financial statements. 

3. SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS: 

1. Interested firms shall include the following information in their submittal responses to this 
solicitation. The following format and sequence should be followed in order to provide consistency 
in the firm’s responses and to ensure each proposal receives full consideration. Use 8 1/2 x 11 
sheet pages only with minimum font size of 10 points and with tabs or section dividers to separate 
sections as defined below. More than one section is permitted on one page unless otherwise 
indicated below. Undesignated information shall be inserted at the rear of each package. Place 
page numbers at the bottom of every page, excluding dividers. Proposal documents should not 
contain links to other web pages; such links will not be reviewed for evaluation purposes. 

 ANSWER: Please reference the answer to question #6. 

88. What is the City of Naples using today to process credit card? (Terminals , Software , Gateway 
) 

ANSWER: Please reference the answer to question #10. 

89. What is the average ticket on credit card transactions? 

ANSWER: Please extrapolate from the information provided in Exhibit C. 

90. What is the annual credit card processing volume for all merchant accounts? 

ANSWER: Please reference the answer to question #39. 

91. Can you please provide current processing statements? 

ANSWER: Please reference Exhibit C. 

92. Please provide two months of analysis statements, which should include statements that reflect 
a high and low months of activity if applicable. 

ANSWER: Please reference Exhibit A - Bank Analysis & Statements 

93. Please provide three months of merchant processing statements, which should include 
statements that reflect a high and low months of activity if applicable. 

ANSWER: Please reference Exhibit C. 

94. Please provide a copy of the City’s Investment Policy. 

ANSWER: Exhibit D - City of Naples Investment Policy.  

95. Please provide the following details in regards to your Remote Deposit service. 

a. Manufacturer and model of your current remote deposit scanners 
b. How many scanners does the city require?  

 
ANSWER:  DigitalTech TS240, City requires 2 scanners. 

96. Does the City utilize an armored car service directly or is it provided through your current bank? 
Please provide armored contract if applicable. 

c. How many locations receive a pickup? One 
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d. How often are deposits picked up from each location? Answered  
e. Please provide a list of locations with the average daily cash deposits, weekly change order 

requirements, and if the deposits are all coin or mixed.  
 

ANSWER:  8, no weekly change order, mixed. 

97. Please provide the following details in regards to your Merchant Processing. 

f. Number of terminals; make and model; own or rent 
g. Name of POS system  
h. Name of Payment Gateway being utilized 

 
ANSWER:  2, Epson Model M147H  Tyler Cashier POS, Authorized.net payment gateway.  

98. Can the city provide an actual analysis statement for the most recent month?  There is a large 
number of line items missing on the proposed fees form and to provide a true picture of the 
proposed fees an analysis statement would be much appreciated. 

ANSWER: Please reference Exhibit A - Bank Analysis & Statements. 

99. 4.4 -- Is the city using an armored car courier? If yes, is it Brinks, Loomis, or Garda?  Where is 
the cash processing volume on the proposed fees form Attachment 8? 

ANSWER:  Yes, Brinks.  

100. What is the ZBA structure referenced? How many sub-zba accounts are there? 

ANSWER: N/A 

101. How many CD-ROMs is the City receiving today? 

ANSWER:  0 

102. With Remote Deposit Capture – how many of the deposits and deposited items are 
processing through that over the Lockbox? 

ANSWER:  N/A – Remote Deposit currently not working.  

103. It shows the city has 8 accounts, can we get a list of the account titles and a brief description 
of what each account is used for? 

ANSWER:  Account titles are self-explanatory.  

104. The city references positive pay and check block in the RFP but I don’t see anything showing 
under the proposed fees form? Which accounts have positive pay and which accounts have 
check block? 

ANSWER:  General Cash Clearing account only.  

105. How long has the City been with the current Bank? 

ANSWER: May 2015. 

106. How many deposit slips are needed annually? 

ANSWER: Roughly 2000 

107. Are you looking for tamper evident bags for deposits to be brought to the branch via courier? 



IMPORTANT MESSAGE 
 

PLEASE ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF THIS ADDENDUM ON THE BID COVER SHEET. 
 

ANSWER: Yes 

108. How many bags, if any, are needed ? 

ANSWER: One bag daily, 500 to start.  

109. What is the current cycle period and payment terms? 

ANSWER: Please reference Exhibit C. 

110. How are cardholders currently coding and submitting their transactions/statements? 
Receipts? 

ANSWER: Through Tyler Munis P-Card Module. 

111. How is the card transaction data being uploaded into your accounting system? 

ANSWER: Uploaded from bank provided file. 

112. Do you currently pay vendors (one time or re-occuring) with a card?  If so, do you use a 
single usage virtual card for these payments? 

ANSWER: One time, the City does not have a virtual card system in place at this time. 

113. Is there a plan to convert/transition vendors from check to card or another form of electronic 
payment? 

ANSWER: No plans at this time. 

114. What system(s) does the City use to process payments today? 

ANSWER: Tyler Munis & Tyler Cashiering.  

115. Which of the above systems are online versus in person? 

ANSWER: Online and in person.  

116. How many Merchant Accounts are subject to this RFP? 

ANSWER:  2. 

117. Are all of the above Merchant Accounts subject to this RFP? 

ANSWER: 2 

118. What is the sales volume and number of transactions you accept for Merchant Services 
today? 

ANSWER: Can be extrapolated from 3 month analysis provided 

119. Does the city use a convenience fee model? 

ANSWER: Answer already provided. 

120. Please provide 3 months of Account Analysis statements, bank statements, money market 
statements, etc. 

ANSWER: Answer already provided. 

121. Please provide 3 months of Merchant Card statements. If any? 

ANSWER: Answer already provided. 
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122. How many times per week does the City make deposits? 

a. Does the City currently use a courier service or employee to take deposits to the bank? 
b. If courier service is being used, who is the City currently contracted with? 
c. Is deposit taken to a branch or vault location? 
d. How much cash is deposited on a weekly basis or daily basis? 

ANSWER: Answer already provided. 

123. The City had noted that they are using Remote Deposit Capture. Please indicate if the City 
owns or lease their equipment? 

e. Please provide the name and model of the equipment being used for Remote Deposit 
Capture. 

ANSWER: Answer already provided 

124. How many of those employees are on direct deposits? 

ANSWER: Answer already provided. 

125. How is ACH transmitted today, via bank software, FTP, etc.? 

ANSWER: Answer already provided. 

126. Does the below imply that we need to accept credit card payments for the fees associated 
with merchant and other services? 

 
ANSWER: Above boiler plate clause does not apply to this RFP. 

 

 Exhibit A - Bank Analysis & Statements 

 Exhibit B - P-Card Agreement 

 Exhibit C - Merchant Card Statements 

 Exhibit D - City of Naples Investment Policy 

  

# # # 
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FIRST RENEWAL OF AGREEMENT AND ITS 
COMMERCIAL CARD REBATE AMENDMENT 

PROFESSIONAL BANKING SERVICES 

Clerk Tracking No. 2..o 2o -ooDS1 

"COMMERCIAL CARD (P-CARD) BANKING SERVICES" 

THIS FIRST RENEWAL AND ITS COMMERC��� CARD REBATE AMENDMENT 
(the "First Renewal") is made and entered into this �ay of :;Fu /Jr 2020 by and
between the City of Naples (the "CITY") and Fifth Third Bank, an Ohio Bank
Corporation, authorized to do business in the State of Florida, located at: 38 Fountain 
Square Plaza; Cincinnati, Ohio 45262 (the "BANK"). 

WHEREAS, the City and the Bank entered into that certain Agreement on June 8,
2015 for Commercial Card (P-Card) Banking Services, Bid No. 15-030, Clerk Tracking 
No. 15-00100 for the City of Naples; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to renew the Original Agreement including its
Commercial Card Rebate Amendment, Attachment A-1 herein referenced and made a 
part of this First Renewal so that the Contractor will provide said services for an additional 
year with changes indicated in Attachment A-1 that include an increased rebate to the 
City as displayed in Exhibit A REBATE TABLE; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager is authorized by City Council pursuant to Section 2-
667 (7)(e), Naples City Code, to renew this Agreement; 

WHEREAS, the parties are required by 119.0701 F.S. to amend the Original
Agreement so that the City and Bank will abide by the terms and conditions contained 
herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is
hereby acknowledged, and in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and 
conditions herein set forth, it is hereby acknowledged and agreed as follows: 

1. The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this
Reference.

2. "Article Five, Maintenance of Records" shall be amended to add Articles
5.2 and 5.3 as indicated below and made a part of this First Renewal.

5.2 119.0701 F.S. CONTACT INFORMATION FOR CITY
OF NAPLES CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS, CITY
CLERK'S OFFICE

If the BANK has questions regarding the application of
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, to the bank's duty to provide public
records relating to this contract, contact the City Clerk, City of
Naples Custodian of Public Records, at Telephone: 239-213-1015,
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Email: PublicRecordsRequest@naplesgov.com; Address: 735 5th 

Street South; Naples, Florida 34102. Mailing address: same as 
street address. 

5.3 The BANK shall: 

1. Keep and maintain public records required by the CITY to
perform the service.

2. Upon request from the CITY'S custodian of public records,
provide the CITY with a copy of the requested records or allow
the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time
at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in this chapter
119.0701 F.S. or as otherwise provided by law.

3. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and
exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not
disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the
contract term and following completion of the contract if the
BANK does not transfer the records to the CITY.

4. Upon completion of the contract, transfer, at no cost, to the
CITY all public records in possession of the BANK or keep
and maintain public records required by the CITY to perform
the service. If the BANK transfers all public records to the
CITY upon completion of the contract, the BANK shall destroy
any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential
and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If
the BANK keeps and maintains public records upon
completion of the contract, the BANK shall meet all applicable
requirements for retaining public records. All records stored
electronically must be provided to the CITY, upon request
from the CITY'S custodian of public records, in a format that
is compatible with the information technology systems of the
CITY.

3. The terms of this First Renewal shall control and take precedence over any
and all terms, provisions and conditions of Original Agreement which might
vary, contradict or otherwise be inconsistent with the terms and conditions
hereof. All of the other terms, provisions and conditions of Original
Agreement, except as expressly amended and modified by this First
Renewal, shall remain unchanged and are hereby ratified and confirmed
and shall remain in full force and effect.

This First Renewal may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed to be an original as against any part whose signature appears thereon 
and all of which shall together constitute one and the same instrument. 

Revision 03/02/2020 jdf / gls 2 
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NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby acknowledged and agreed that the Original 
Agreement is hereby renewed from August 1, 2020 through July 31, 2021 with one (1)
1/year renewal available between the CITY and BANK. 

CITY OF NAPLES, FLORIDA 

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency: 

BANK WITNESS: 

i�2 Witness (�ure) 

Printed 
Name: Travis Whitley 

Revision 03/02/2020 jdf / gls 

BANK: 

FIFTH THIRD BANK 
999 Vanderbilt Beach Road 
Naples, Florida 34108 
Attention: Dawne Choate, Vice President 

3 

By: � �C\.., ... A.Ty (2,k_�
(Signature) 

Printed 
Name: Dawn Choate

Title: VP, Treasury Management Officer

FEI/EIN Number: On File (OH) 
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··�.··.·························· ..... �.
· 'F'IFI'H: THlilo · BANr.

' . ' ,. . ' 

'COMMERCIAL CAR[), REBATE AMENDMENT'' 
. . -

. 

. 
. . . 

. 
.. . 

-

-

. . 

This 'tomn1erdal Card 'Reb�te .· Amen.dment: .{"Rebate .. _Amendment''} ami
i

nds the
' ConimerdaL Card .Service Agreement (as amended- from tlme to time� the:"Card Ag,reemenf.•j-' 
·. :�uriently in eff�tf h�tw�en the .·;'custp�er'; )dentified on �he Sign�ture _Ppge ("yo�''l a.nd r=ifih • _

. ·• : Thi-rd Bank {we'l. o� ''us1�). iapitalized Te�·ms �s�ci but -not defined- ii,·. ihi� ·documeht-J'iave the ·
·- - meaning assigned to them in the C::ardAgi'eemerit -

- -
-- . ·· .. . . .

.. . 
- ··.: . . : 

.
.. 

-

. 
_· . 

-
. _- . :·... . 

--

. 

: 

. 

. 

.
. 

. 

. . -In. consid.eration. of the·. mut.ual �greements . of the. parties. set' forth in . this :Rebate. -. 
Amendment and your cornmitmen:t to 1ise the Cards ahd Ac�ou_11t,the parties' agree as follows: 

. . . . 

. 1: .. : .· Definitions. A_s used .in tbis Rebate Amendm:ent,the f9llowing terms hav.�· the indicl':)ted
' �ean,ings:' .· 

' 

' (· 

;'Caler1dai' Yea.r!; means .the: P.etiod from:January 1 of a, yea� through Decemb-ef. 31 of the .
.

same year; 1f the Effedive'. Date_ is other �han Janu�ry 1, the first Calendar y_ea( :wrn be 
deemed to comn)ence on the· �xecutio.n _date of this .. Rebat� Amendment :and .end on 
Decembe_r 31 of the sa·meye�r as·the Effective.Date,arid the last Calend�r Year shall be · _ 
deemed to· �rid on the ..

. 
date· of:the expir�tion or termination o(th� Reb.ate .ferm (as

.. de!iried bele>w) a�d to begin �rj �he immedia_tely precedingJa�uary � of the sarn.e: year_ in ' 
which the expiratiqn C>r terrninat,iori _o·ccurred. - ' ' 

. 

:·.: . . . 
. 

. 
. . 

. 

·
: ··

_ . . 

. 
_· 

. 

. 
: 

-

:·.· 

. 
·

. 

-

.

. 
_

· .

. 

·
·.

: 

..

.

. 

·
. 

. 

!;Card los�es":.mean the al')1ount of .charge-�ffs and:other losses. we incur in cqnne<;tion 
. with your:Accourit as a· result of your failure to pay any amount owing ori the Account as . 

P.tindpal, interest:or fees�or other charges� bu-t not including arri<>unts_not chargeab.ie to·.: 
you .under the:caiiAgreement a·s 'a resulfof the FifthJhfrd Use' Liability Policy� 

., 

: . . 
. 

-
:·_· -. .·_ . . . . 

. . . .. . ·. - . 

-

-

-

. 
. ·, :·. . . . 

-

:·. 

!'C>iscourit Tran�actic,ns" meal'.l transact:iqns that are subject t_o_ discount interchan.ge 
·_ rates that are. less than .far�e ticket inter.change rates as establisheq and designated by

IVlast�rCard International; Inc .: _l'�M.asierC.cird'}
-

. . . 

-

. . . . 
. -

. 
. 

. 

. 
. . 

. 

"Effective' Date;� means, .if' the executlon date of this, Rebate Amel'.ldment is the fir;t.' ' '
caie�dar 'day 'of, a month;· :that •date; otherwise, ttie· first day of the :first fu1·1. calendar
month afterthe. execu_tion dat.e. 
. . 

. . . . . . . 
.· 

-

-

. 

"Large Ticket· Trans.acticfr1s'i or �'LTI" mean transactions · that qualify · for· reduced 
interchange rates_ as estabHshed ·and:· designated by the respective · association ·· 
(MasterCard otVisa). 

Classification: fnternal Use · 

� Standard Dec 2018
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fifth Third Bank . AttachmenH .: Cominercia) Card Rebate Arnel'ldment 
. . 

RFP 15�030 Firs.t Ren�wal · ·· 2 of 6

. : CONFIDENTIAL 

.. .. 

"Qualified Volume"· mean� the US dc:illa(amourit of transactions for the P.Urchase of 
g�ods and �ervices •attributable to iLMaste rC:ard Card issue� under th� C�rd Agreel'l'.lent ·: : 
du.ring the: period of. calculation .¢xduding: . (a) the principal amount of ant ·balance: ...
transfer, cash- advanc:es ()f'. :checks, :c:redits and returns, account: fees,. finance· ttiarges; : 
transaction fees�. delirique·n·cy fees, over�the-,iimjt fees,. and any . other foes· imposed: by .. : .. . us� MasterCard or -another. entity;: (b) Card tosse.s;. and (c) . a"riy. other. �mounts. -�ot ...
�hargeab:le to you �nder the terrr�s :'of the. Cai"� Agi"_eement in.eluding by Virtue of the ..

. Fifth Third: Li�e. Liability Polity :or �imilar prot_edion. pla_n prnvi9ed· l)y .1\/lasterCard· •or
. · otherwise .. "Qualifi�dVolume":may also.be referred to as ;'Spefr1d" or "Rebate Sp��d:" 
. . 

. . 

·2 ..
. ·. Rebate 

. Determination-. ·-subj�ct to. the fulfil_lment-of the Rebate. Conditions
. 
(as defined, below);

. we will pay to you: for each Cale�dar Year dUriDg:the.Rebate Term ·a rebatet'Rebate'tequ�l.to : .
.. 
. . the s_um of the followlng•products:: .. ·... • . •. 

. 
.
. 

. . . .
. . .. 

. 

. : . (·�) :you� Qualified Volume for �U(:_h Caieridar Year (exclud_ing: Large Ticket'.Tr�nsa<;:tions .. 
· and: biscou·nt Tra.nsactions) multiplied. Q.Y the a·pplicc1ble payment percentage ·(:';Rebate ·
'· Percentage") .in the row cor'res·pohding to your total Qualified Volume (including: Large .Ticket 

.
· . 

trarisactio:ns a�d Oiscoulit.Tran�a�tion�) as :sefforth i� the: �ebate Table il)tl�ded qn· Exhibit A; ...
. plus . 

(b) your uu·alified Volume· of large Ticket· Tr'ansactJons in such Calendar Year m_ultipiied
. . . . . . . .  ' . . . ' 

by the lower of (i) the Rebat'e·Percentage"tor: LargeTic.kef Transactions spedfied:on. Exhibit A 
. . c!rid:(i:o the·Rebate Percentage applied. under clause (ai ab,ove·tO yo��-Q1Jalified \toluni�;. plu:s:::

. 1 . 

. . (c) Your Qualified Volume of Discount .Transactions jr;:�u:ch GaJeildar Year multipHed by. :·. .
. I:

... th� IC>w�r of (i) t_he. Rebate.:Perc:e'ritag�: for.:Discp�nt :rransa:ctioiis specified as: Exhibit A. arid (jj}.:
ihe Rebat� Percentage'"applie� under'qlause (a).ab�ve.to yoUr Qualifi.ed Volume.

: Subject to th� terms of the ·.paragraph entitled ''Rebate .Conditions" below, for ariy · :
Calen:dar :year fo_r which a Rebate is payable that: is l�ss than tWelve .. mcm:ths,· y6ur:

.
actual .. ·. Qualified Volume for �uch period wii).be annuc!lized to:deterrnirie the: applicabie·:rebatetier and .. .. . 

. the a�tua1 Qu�lified :volume.tor s��h� period wili. be multipiied by the Rebate Percentage in -tiie .· .: 
..

. . . . applicable tier so dete�mined� .. If yo·u ·do : not meet -the. rriiriimum Qualified Vofunie. ievei· .
· specified in the. Rebat(Table for"a Calendar Year, riq _Rebate will be: payabl� for.t_h:at Calendar ·· · .
Year:.· This ·lleba.te Ameridrrient is not ·valid_ unless Exhibit .A ·in.,cluding a Rebate Table is· 
. attached or deemeiattat:h�d to this Rebate: Amendment at the time :Qf signing thi$ Rebate . .
Am�ndment.· .· . . . .· . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . .· . 

. . 

. Cardlosses. There WiU be: deduc.ted from ·e.ach Rebate. o_therwise payable to you t
·
h
.
e: · .... 

amoun� of all. Card lo.sses attributable to the Calendar' Year in which the Rebate was earned or 
. . ' . 

anyiub�equint�erlod. 

_Classification: Internal Use 
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-Fifth Thi�d Bank Attachment�1 : Commercial Card Rebate Amendment : RFP 15-030 Firsj Renewal .. _ :3 of a· 
. . .. 

-- .. CONFIDENTIAL 

. . 
. . . . . _· .. .. . 

. . . . . - . . . . 
. 

. .. 
. . 

_Calculation. We will calculate the QuaHfiedVolume and applicable Rebate:i_n good faith 
: � and ·our detetniination will be:final in the absence of manifest error; You·r Rebate will be· paicHo 

yo� within the first quarter following the·calend_ar Year in _Which the
.
:Rebate was e°arnE:d. · 

. . . . 

... Rebate. Conditions'. _-- To b�. eligiple for the Rebate for a Calendar Year,. you rTIIJSt: (a)
main"tain: :th-� Account in goof standing _thro:ughout :Such: Calehda"i': Y�a�- by. timely

. 
paying "all

_- amo"unts· due ori :·the ·A.ccoµnt each month. in:. aci:ordan:ce :with the 
--
Card: Agre:erri'�nt -and: 

otherwise b�irig in compliance.with, and11ot in default under the Card-Agreement; (.b) continue -• - - • • ' • . . • • • • . ' • .. • • • � . . • .• . . ' . • - J • - . - ' ' - . • • - . • . 

to a�tively use: the_ Acc_ount _ during :th� enti_re C_alendar Year;: and. (c) not h_c1ve · redoc_e_d your 
-. _QuaBfieq Vol_ume due t_o use of�·Or transition t<>, a conip�ting card qr service; d·urir,g .th�:-9():days :·.

· -. following· the end of the Calendar:Year: (other than following expiration or terniination·of.the. :·
.. : Rebate Term) (the ;,Rebate Condition's").· ,n addition; if.this·· Rebate Amendrnent:or-the C�rd .

Agreement· l�termiriated ·by you'.for :�ny �easo� oris terminateid- by u_� a:s �- . .resuit c,t" a :Rebate:_· 
Oefault (�s "defined in Section 3); "v�� wiu .be deemed to ha�e :f�m�� to 'meet ::the Rebat�- - -

. Conditions for the. Caleridar:Year in:-which -si:J�h 1:e:rminatioh oc.curs .. - lfthe Rebate Cdhd_ition� ....
are not satisfied in or with respect to any Caleridar Year, you _a.re iiot entitled to :a Reb�te· for - ·
that Calendar.Year'.· 

- . ' - . 

_ Reports and· Information.·. we. wllL provide the calculations ar:id supporting· :Qualifi�d 
- · Volume documentatio·n_ available fo .. us-for the Reb.ate upon :vour reasonable request_ Yo·u:

agree_ to provide vc1lidation ari"d documentati_on reasonabiy satisfactory to us of an,ttransadion -
· or other inforrhc1t1on ·we reasonahly :request to · verify' or· support th·e·. Qv�lifie·d Vol�rne.·· and. _ -
ca1c�iation -of: the Rebate, a�d we rnav. conctitio� c>r' withhold payment pendihg receipt �f. su�h : : -

' inform.ation·. . . . ' ' . -- ' ' '. 
. 

. ' . ' . . ' ., ' ' . . . .. . .
. ' 

. ' ' 

_ Adjustme'nt Even�s: Your Rebate·term·s·�ave been establi�hed b·asedJn·part on certain
. _assuri,ptions rE!lating .to a n.umbe� of exte��al. conditions: including interest ·rate ·and: _market.conditions, your financial COJlditip11; and .. currer,t regulatory · requir�men·t� (indu_�ing 
· interchange ra·tes and - restrictions}. - - - Should• a significant · change in such.· conditions .. :or
requirements.· occur;. we reserve the right to a�just-your Rebate terms to reflecf_the effect .6f -
such change 011 us as pete�niined.'by us h good faith. We wiil give. you not le·ss: tt.,an ninety (90)

. -
_ · -

. �ays noti�e of the" [mple�ent�ticm of a_�y· such a�jus�rnerit. ' . ' . . . ' . . . . . . . . ' .. ' 

. ' ' 

3. · Rebate: Term. - Unless· terminated sooner: as . provided in this Rebate Amendment, the -
term of this Rebate Amendment ("Reb�te Term;') shall commend� on the date. this Rebate

_ Amehdir!ent - ii execu.t-ed .and shall:_ expir� on ttie day im�egiately preceding the thi�d : . _ 
- -__ anniversary of the Effective Date; provided however, that unless either party gives to the ot_h�r -

party written notice _of non-renewar of the Rebate Term-not late_r �han sixty (60) days pri_ot to. -
- the expiration :of the stateo Rebate Term� ·the Rebate Term shall auto'rnatic_ally be extended on -- . 
� mcmth-to�month basi� Lintil such •ti .me as tliis Rebate Amendment. is. ter"minat�d by either .

.

. 
party upon "sixty (GO) days prior: written notice .. This Rebate -A�endme�t and the Rebate Term ..

Classification: lniernal Use -

3 
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· Fifth Third· Bank Attac�ment-1 : Com.mercial Card Rebate Ame11dinent RFP 15-030 Firsn�enE;!Wal . 4 of. 6 

. \ 
\ 

. . . - . .. 

·· CONFIDENTIAL. . . 
',; . 

· · terminate :automatic;:ally upo_n the terminati_on of the ·Card Agre.ement. We may.terminate this:. 
Rebate Ame.ndnient immediateiy in our �iscretion at . any tinie by giving VOLi wr_itten notice (a) .

. ·upon. the occurrence ·of a·ny default"ljndet the Card Agreement or any material: breath ·of this ... 
. Rebate Am�n-dment by you or _(b) .upon �ny · default by you in. connettion· with a�i 10�11 :or··· .

advance we o'r any of our. affiliates have made to you, or u'nde(an'y other· indebte�ness; 
·· · obligaticm or Hab_illty y�u owe to us e>r any of our ·affiliates, whether no� existrrig or arising in _-·_ · · · · 

.

the future (c!nY s.uch:everit in clause (al w (b), ?J."Rebate Default'�).
. . . .. . . . .. 

4. · Confidentiality� During. the• Rebate Term ·and for .two. (2) ·years after the. Rebate .Term,··
yo1{ and we- agree. to k�ep· corifidentic;11: all iriformat,on relCiting to: ·t·h,s Re.bate

. 
A�endment. 

·· induding the �xistence,. terms and. ·co.riditions_ of this. Reb�t� Amendment, :and tp. not disclose .... :
. such

. 
informat .ion exce'pt to: those individuals within our respedive organizations with a .. 

reasonable -need td: know such i�formation.: Each of us acknowledges that, in the. event �f cf 
.· breach of. this: Se�tion· 4, the non-br�aching. party wiH likeiy suffer irreparable damage that .
. carino.t b·e tuliy: remedied by monetary damages .. Ac�ordingly;.Jri addition to �ny remedy th�t

.. . the �on�breachir1g paity'may pos�ess pu.rsuant to _appHc�ble law� the ·  non-:l>reac:hiiig party has . 
the right.to ·see.I< a11·c:1 obtain injuri_ctive· relief agajnst any such breach :iii any ci;>urt of .compet�nt

·.·Jurisdiction. Notwithstanding the foregoing,· the restrictions ahd .. obligation·s set for:th :in this· 
·section· 4 · c10 :ii�t. apply · to· the_:e�t�nt :.vou are

. 
sµbject: to_treeqom: at info.rmatiori;. ope�-- .. 

. government ()r similar laws .9.rregulat'ions requfring you fodisc:IOSE! any such infofmation'. .· 

s. · Effect. This Rebat.e Ar:nen.dment amends the Card. Agreement solely for purposes of 
. establishing af\rebate oj:iportunity for

.
you dur.in·g the Rebate term . . All provisions of the Card .. . . . . ·. - .. - . . . .. \ .. .  ·. . . '.. . . 

.. . . . . . . .. .  ·. . .. . 

Agreement not inconsistent with this Rebate Amendment shall remain unchanged and in full . 

· . force and· effect,. and are_ ratified. and· confirmed, In the c�se �f: any irretOncilabie. conflict
between. the• various provisions· in the . Card Agreeme·nt and.• this: Rebate · ,L\mendmen_t; the - .. 
provisions c>t' th1s . .'Rebate Amendment shall prevail ' to the :extent necessary ·to >resolve: the 

. corifl)ct.. 
. . . . . . . . .. . . . . .  . . .

' . . .. ' . 
. 

. . . . 

6;. Miscellaneous; ·\/1/e and you ·each i"E:!present and \t\farrant to· e
.
ach:other thatthi�,Rebat.e

Amendment· has been authorized by .i1U necessa·ry cor.porate or other entity action,: and thatthe ·. person ·signfnfthls R�bate .Ame:ndrr1ent is. duly :au_tlio'riz�d to· doso: This R�bate Amendrnei
l

t 
.
.

•. evidences Jhe' enti�e agr�ement ��d- understanding between u� with resped-t� the payment of 
a rebate to you; and -superse��s all prior agreements arid discussions between us with respect .

. . . to the payment of a 'rebate tC> you.:. .. . .
. . . 

. . ·· .. ******�igna,t1,1re. p��e. t=tillows****** .

.. Classification: Internal ·use 
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Fifth Third Bank Attachment-1 : Commercial Card Rebate Amendment RFP 15-030 First Renewal 

Witness: The parties have caused this Rebate Amendment to be executed by their duly 
authorized representatives as of the date set forth below. 

EXECUTED THIS .J L,\ \1 t),.0

FIFTH THIRD BANK 

By: 

Print name: Dawn Choate 

CUSTOMER: 

By:--------------

5 of6 

Print title: VP, Treasury Management Officer 
Print name: Cf:l:A.�LeS I.GHt\PM-f\N_ 1V 

By: -i�t/f,�2"-----
Print name: __ J.ur..,.a._..y.,,js'-'Wb ............ itl ... e�y ____ _ 

Print title: __ V ........ P ..... I .... M .... Q ........ 11 .... I _____ _ 

Print title: �I� � f\ t?t\&eJZ.. 
PAYMENT TERMS: [CUSTOMER INITIAL PAYMENT TERM 
SELECTED] 

30/15 __ 

30/25 __ 

OTHER (SPECl�{)s�o OUR WRITIEN APPROVAL) 
30/05 � 

IF NOT INITIALED, REBATE WILL BE BASED ON 30/25

Fifth Third and Fifth Third Bank are registered service marks of Fifth Third Bancorp. Member 
FDIC. 

Class1ficallon Internal Use 

December 2018- Standard 
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· fifth Third Bank . · · _Attachment-1 : Cominer�ial Card Rebat� Amendme�t · · RFP-15-030 First Renewal · 6 of 6 

\. 

-·CONFIDENTIAL_

Exhibit A_ 
REBATE TABLE .. 

This Re_bateAmeJid_mentis NOT valid unless "the R.ebate :Table is attached. ir,•however; a.
_ Rebate Table is not attached to this Rebate Alllendmentbut there is in effect and not supers.eded a . .
Rebate ptop�sal.ft-om us.set forth bi.a writing signed ili'iitk by on:e of �ur atithorjzed -_, 
represelitati�es that: has been accepted by you; :signed. by y�u in hi� tetumed to us by. you: an'd . _· 

. - . . - ,- . - - . . ' 

: _appears bi our records, _that Rebate. proposal i_s deemed incorporated· i.nto thi_s Exhibit A. If a . 

_· R�bateTab_le is_ attache·d"to _this Rebate Ame:il�ment, that Reb�t� ·'table superse.des �ny such
__ proposal .. 

Minimum Maximum Rate Rate Large Payment Discount 
Term Term Ticket Gateway Trans Rate 
30/15 30/5 Rate 

-$250,000 $499,999.99 . . 0.55%: 0;60%. .. .. 
. .

$500.000 •. _$749.999.99 0.65%. -0.70%
$'750,000' $999�999.99 .. 0.75% :0.80%- ·o.5o%- $1;000;000 · $,2,999,999.99 - :0.90%: -0.95%·

. $3,000,000 -$4�999,999.99: 1.05%- - :t.40%
: $5;000,000 .. _$9,999;999.99 1-.. 20%: :1;50%. 
$10.000,000 Above -1.35% ·1.60% -

Classification: intemal Use_ 

- -

- -

Trans Rate 
. . 

--

.. 

0,25%-.·-
- -

.. 

.. 

.. 
. .

. .

o'.io%-
--

. .

.. 

·1 . .

I . . .

Fifth Third Bank RFP 15-030 Attachment A : Extension Year-7                  9 of 9
Exhibit B - P-Card Agreement



Account Number: XXXX XXXX XXXX 9533

CITY OF NAPLES
Page 1 of 20Statement Closing Date: 03/31/22

Corporate Account Summary Payment Information

Previous Balance $260,719.81 New Balance $330,858.83
Payments - $260,719.81 Minimum Payment Due $330,858.83
Credits - $5,850.12 Payment Due Date 04/25/22
Purchases and Other Charges + $336,708.95
Cash Advances + $0.00 QUESTIONS OR TO REPORT LOST/STOLEN CARDS?
Late Payment Charge + $0.00
Cash Advance Fees + $0.00 Call Customer Service 1-800-375-1747
Finance Charges + $0.00
New Balance $330,858.83 Please send billing inquiries and correspondence to:

F IFT H T HIRD BANKDisputed Amount $0.00
PO BOX 740523Past Due Amount $0.00
CINCINNAT I, OH 45274-0523

Credit Limit $2,000,000.00
Available Credit Limit $1,669,141.17
Cash Advance Credit Limit $0.00 Or email inquires to CommercialSupport@53.com
Available Cash Advance Credit Limit $0.00
Statement Closing Date 03/31/22
Days in Billing Cycle 31

Account Messages
An Annual Program Fee is assessed to programs with less than $350,000 in 2021 spend. The fee, if applicable, will be charged
to your account in April 2022.

Corporate Account Activity
Post Date Tran Date Reference Number Transaction Description Amount

03/25 03/25 AUTO PAYMENT DEDUCTION -$260,719.81

Finance Charge Summary
Your Annual Percentage Rate (APR) is the annual rate on your account.

Annual Percentage Rate Balance Subject to Finance
Type of Balance (APR) Finance Charge Charge
PURCHASES 19.80% $0.00 $0.00
CASH ADVANCES 19.80% $0.00 $0.00

Detach and return lower portion with your payment.  Please retain above portion.

Account Number XXXX XXXX XXXX 9533
Payment Due Date 04/25/22

FIFT H T HIRD BANK
Amount Due $330,858.83PO BOX 740523
Current Balance $330,858.83CINCINNAT I, OH 45274-0523

You are enrolled in automatic payments.
Your payment will be automatically debited
on the payment due date.

CIT Y OF NAPLES FIFT H T HIRD BANK
PO BOX 740523CORPORAT E BILLING ACCT
CINCINNAT I, OH 45274-0523

C/O FELIX GOMEZ
735 8T H ST S
NAPLES FL 34102-6703

0321022720168890 0330858838 0330858838

Exhibit C - Merchant Card Statements



Account Number: XXXX XXXX XXXX 9533

CITY OF NAPLES
Page 1 of 20Statement Closing Date: 04/29/22

Corporate Account Summary Payment Information

Previous Balance $330,858.83 New Balance $357,502.03
Payments - $330,858.83 Minimum Payment Due $357,502.03
Credits - $3,113.14 Payment Due Date 05/24/22
Purchases and Other Charges + $360,615.17
Cash Advances + $0.00 QUESTIONS OR TO REPORT LOST/STOLEN CARDS?
Late Payment Charge + $0.00
Cash Advance Fees + $0.00 Call Customer Service 1-800-375-1747
Finance Charges + $0.00
New Balance $357,502.03 Please send billing inquiries and correspondence to:

F IFT H T HIRD BANKDisputed Amount $0.00
PO BOX 740523Past Due Amount $0.00
CINCINNAT I, OH 45274-0523

Credit Limit $2,000,000.00
Available Credit Limit $1,642,497.97
Cash Advance Credit Limit $0.00 Or email inquires to CommercialSupport@53.com
Available Cash Advance Credit Limit $0.00
Statement Closing Date 04/29/22
Days in Billing Cycle 29

Corporate Account Activity
Post Date Tran Date Reference Number Transaction Description Amount

04/25 04/25 AUTO PAYMENT DEDUCTION -$330,858.83

Finance Charge Summary
Your Annual Percentage Rate (APR) is the annual rate on your account.

Annual Percentage Rate Balance Subject to Finance
Type of Balance (APR) Finance Charge Charge
PURCHASES 19.80% $0.00 $0.00
CASH ADVANCES 19.80% $0.00 $0.00

Cardholder Account Summary
Name and Account Number Credit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity

(summary continued on next page)

Detach and return lower portion with your payment.  Please retain above portion.

Account Number XXXX XXXX XXXX 9533
Payment Due Date 05/24/22

FIFT H T HIRD BANK
Amount Due $357,502.03PO BOX 740523
Current Balance $357,502.03CINCINNAT I, OH 45274-0523

You are enrolled in automatic payments.
Your payment will be automatically debited
on the payment due date.

CIT Y OF NAPLES FIFT H T HIRD BANK
PO BOX 740523CORPORAT E BILLING ACCT
CINCINNAT I, OH 45274-0523

C/O FELIX GOMEZ
735 8T H ST S
NAPLES FL 34102-6703

0321022720168890 0357502038 0357502038

Exhibit C - Merchant Card Statements



Account Number: XXXX XXXX XXXX 9533

CITY OF NAPLES
Page 1 of 20Statement Closing Date: 05/31/22

Corporate Account Summary Payment Information

Previous Balance $357,502.03 New Balance $334,804.15
Payments - $357,502.03 Minimum Payment Due $334,804.15
Credits - $4,378.25 Payment Due Date 06/27/22
Purchases and Other Charges + $339,182.40
Cash Advances + $0.00 QUESTIONS OR TO REPORT LOST/STOLEN CARDS?
Late Payment Charge + $0.00
Cash Advance Fees + $0.00 Call Customer Service 1-800-375-1747
Finance Charges + $0.00
New Balance $334,804.15 Please send billing inquiries and correspondence to:

F IFT H T HIRD BANKDisputed Amount $0.00
PO BOX 740523Past Due Amount $0.00
CINCINNAT I, OH 45274-0523

Credit Limit $2,000,000.00
Available Credit Limit $1,665,195.85
Cash Advance Credit Limit $0.00 Or email inquires to CommercialSupport@53.com
Available Cash Advance Credit Limit $0.00
Statement Closing Date 05/31/22
Days in Billing Cycle 32

Corporate Account Activity
Post Date Tran Date Reference Number Transaction Description Amount

05/24 05/24 AUTO PAYMENT DEDUCTION -$357,502.03

Finance Charge Summary
Your Annual Percentage Rate (APR) is the annual rate on your account.

Annual Percentage Rate Balance Subject to Finance
Type of Balance (APR) Finance Charge Charge
PURCHASES 19.80% $0.00 $0.00
CASH ADVANCES 19.80% $0.00 $0.00

Cardholder Account Summary
Name and Account Number Credit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity

(summary continued on next page)

Detach and return lower portion with your payment.  Please retain above portion.

Account Number XXXX XXXX XXXX 9533
Payment Due Date 06/27/22

FIFT H T HIRD BANK
Amount Due $334,804.15PO BOX 740523
Current Balance $334,804.15CINCINNAT I, OH 45274-0523

You are enrolled in automatic payments.
Your payment will be automatically debited
on the payment due date.

CIT Y OF NAPLES FIFT H T HIRD BANK
PO BOX 740523CORPORAT E BILLING ACCT
CINCINNAT I, OH 45274-0523

C/O FELIX GOMEZ
735 8T H ST S
NAPLES FL 34102-6703

0321022720168890 0334804150 0334804150

Exhibit C - Merchant Card Statements
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